
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 13 July 2021 

 

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

On: Wednesday 21 July 2021 At: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The Council is 
also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used are Covid secure and 

that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public will be able to attend the 
meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public participation. Any members of the 

public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch through the Councils YouTube Channel  
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

 

To: Councillor J Manley (Chair) 
Councillor C Cottle-Hunkin (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, S Newton, 
P Pennington and R Wiseman 
 
Non elected Members: Mr P Topham 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Introduction From New Committee Chair  

 For the new Chair of External Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Cllr Manley,  to 
welcome attendees and introduce herself.  
 

2.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube


 
 

 

3.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 9) 

 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 21st April 2021. 
 

4.   Public Participation  

 15 minute period for public contributions 
 

5.   Action List  

6.   Declaration Of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.  
 

7.   Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II  

8.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair  

9.   Together Drug & Alcohol Service  

 An opportunity to hear from Together Drug & Alcohol Service about their work in 
relation to mental health issues.  
 

10.   Consideration Of The Forward Plan (Pages 10 - 11) 

11.   Exclusion Of The Public  

 The Chair to move:-  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 

 Meeting Organiser: Dem Services 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 
 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Remote meeting via Zoom 
 

Wednesday, 21 April 2021 - 6.00 pm 
 

PRESENT Councillor P Pennington (Chair) 
 

 Councillors S Harding, C Hawkins, S Langford, C Leather, 
J McKenzie and S Newton 

 
 Mr P Topham 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 M Richards - Democratic Services Officer 

 
 S Mackney - Principal and Chief Executive, Petroc 

College 
 

 Councillors C Hodson, K James and N Laws 
 

61.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Cottle-Hunkin and Councillor 
Ford.  Councillor Harding had technical issues but was eventually able to join the 
meeting at 18.15. 
 

62.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There were no public contributions. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington and seconded by Councillor Newton – 
 

That:  
 
The running order of the agenda be changed so that items 3 (Minutes) and 4 (Action List) 
be considered after item 8 (Petroc College/Promoting Youth Employment). 

 
A recorded vote was taken. 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

CLLR COTTLE-HUNKIN C    

CLLR FORD, L    

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
 

CLLR HARDING, S X   

CLLR HAWKINS, C X   

CLLR LANGFORD, S X   

CLLR LEATHER, C X   

CLLR McKENZIE, J X   

CLLR NEWTON, S X   

CLLR PENNINGTON, P W X   

Mr P TOPHAM X   

 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 

 
63.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 
Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and 
when the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

64.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 
There were no Part II items. 
 

65.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 
There were no urgent matters brought forward. 
 

66.    PETROC COLLEGE / PROMOTING YOUTH EMPLOYMENT  
 
The Chair invited members to introduce themselves. 
 
Councillor Pennington declared a personal interest – his son works at Petroc 
College. 
 
Mr Mackney thanked members for the opportunity to attend and for the questions 
submitted prior to the meeting.  Information was shared about the strategy, 
mission and aims of the college to provide excellence across all areas of learning 
through its values led approach based on community, empowerment and respect.   
The Team Petroc approach presents 5 ways of working - personalised and 
customer focused; digitally able; achieving value for money; agile and 
entrepreneurial and continuously learning and improving. 
 
The college’s performance is benchmarked against the top 10% of colleges of 
further education in the country. 
 
Mr Mackney spoke about the key aims of the strategy making reference to learner 
achievements; life chances and employment opportunities; building community 
and prosperity; supporting local businesses and those who create new businesses 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

to boost productivity and to be innovative and agile.  Climate emergency is also a 
key aim. 
 
Speaking about the impact of Covid, Mr Mackney explained the college’s 
approach which had been to create a stable, sustainable and safe 
learning/working environment for staff, learners and the community.  A blended 
learning approach had been adopted during Covid which had meant both learners 
and staff had had to develop new skills, for some it had been challenging but 
support was in place.  Addressing the issue of digital poverty, the college had 
distributed 200 wifi dongles and purchased 450 laptops.  Rooms had been given 
over to the NHS for hot zones for treatment but these had not been needed in the 
end and space for training Covid volunteers had been provided. 
 
The financial impact had been felt but Petroc had not required government 
intervention.  There had been positive outcomes such as team ethos and the 
willingness to learn better ways to support learning – staff satisfaction had 
increased from 77% 2 years ago to 92% during lockdown. 
 
There had been some adversity in respect of apprenticeships, with employers 
closing schemes down, not taking on apprentices or even businesses going bust.  
It had not been possible to find work placements, although working environments 
had been simulated.  Hands on experience had suffered. This is starting to recover 
and there are financial incentives coming from government.  Financial poverty had 
ranged from casual work drying up to free school meal support being withdrawn 
over the holidays.   
 
The college had seen increasing numbers of referrals related to domestic violence.  
Safeguarding incidents had doubled from 250 a year to 450 and again to 900.  
There were real concerns around mental health and particularly self harm.  
Counselling is provided. 
 
With regard to opportunities, the topic of home working was raised and the  
prospect of training students to adapt to the aspects of working online was put 
forward, perhaps even teaming up with companies to try to get them to offer that 
type of apprenticeship. Mr Mackney told the meeting that every learner has digital 
skills as part of their learning programme.  A Dragon’s Den session had 
encouraged students to look at businesses with a digital focus and environmental 
focus.  A further dimension is that people will locate here who are connected with 
businesses elsewhere in the country.  Petroc has a centre for technology and 
innovation excellence which is a rapid prototyping and design centre for 
entrepreneurs and is connected to NODE which coordinates co-working. 
 
An important dimension looking forward will be the improvement of broadband.  
Petroc employs a member of staff who is based in the USA and one in 
Bedfordshire and both are successfully performing their roles remotely. 
 
Another aspect discussed was the changing face of the high street. 
 
Mr Mackney provided statistics relating to student numbers as follows: 
 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

 10,000 learners 

 3,500 are the 16 -18 year olds 

 The rest are adults and distance learners 
 
With regard to Higher Education, students had been positive about the blended 
offering but equally about digital learning.   
 
Looking at the future and working in partnership with TDC, Mr Mackney stated that 
the relationship with the Leader, the Chief Executive and officers had been 
positive and forward thinking.  Future obstacles to be tackled included the lack of 
social mobility and disadvantage post Covid.  There was now much more 
collaborative work with the secondary schools.  Meetings had taken place with 
Bideford and Ilfracombe Colleges who were working together to ensure students 
continue to be engaged with learning.  A programme of activities will be made 
available as tasters for those students who are not engaging with education or 
seeking employment. 
 

 A new university level offer is about to go live in northern Devon where cash 
is paid to learners alongside quality work placements. 

 The college offers a package for unemployed workers to upskill. 

 The college has created a wrap-around package to the kick start 
programme encouraging additional training.  Job opportunities had been 
created at the college using the kick start programme.   

 
Mr Mackney spoke about funding and gave examples of some of the programmes 
which have been created with a focus, for example, on young people who are not 
in training, further education or employment; retraining older people to enable 
them to find employment in health and care and the Innovate UK programme 
which uses students to do knowledge/technology transfer for those businesses 
who need to innovate.  
 
The ensuing opportunity for questions initiated debates and information sharing 
around mental health and social prescribing, particularly in creative fields; building 
psychological resilience, interpersonal skills and the integration of good mental 
health into the curriculum; the relationship between incomes and further 
education/employment.  
 
The Leader commented on the exciting collaborative working on the Devon 
Futures programme which will be brought to Full Council at some stage.  He 
commended the positive drive of Mr Mackney and said he looked forward to 
continuing to work together. 
 
Councillor James left the meeting. 
 
Concluding the discussion, the Chair said that broadband and digital exclusion 
were issues which the council was keen to address. 
 
The Chair asked whether Mr Mackney had any requirements of the Council, to 
which he replied that the response from the Leader and officers was always very 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

positive but he would welcome any additional support in relation to opportunities 
for work placements and traineeships.  
 
The Chair thanked Mr Mackney for the excellent work of the college. 
 

67.    MINUTES  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Leather, seconded by Councillor Pennington and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March be agreed and signed as a 
correct record. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

CLLR COTTLE-HUNKIN C    

CLLR FORD, L    

CLLR HARDING, S X   

CLLR HAWKINS, C X   

CLLR LANGFORD, S X   

CLLR LEATHER, C X   

CLLR McKENZIE, J X   

CLLR NEWTON, S X   

CLLR PENNINGTON, P W X   

Mr P TOPHAM X   

 
 
(Vote: For - unanimous) 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Minute 56 – Westward Housing: Play Areas 
 
Councillor Langford confirmed that the swings at High View had now been 
replaced. 
 
Minute 56 – Westward Housing: Bowden Green 
 
Councillor Langford had spoken to Barbara Shaw about Bowden Green being on 
the list of potential areas to be developed for housing, and Ms Shaw had advised 
that any prospective development would always be subject to tenant consultation, 
as tenants pay a service charge.  It would not be extended to the general public. 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

 
68.    ACTION LIST  

 
The action list was noted. 
 

69.    ANNUAL REPORT  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Newton and –  
 
Resolved: 
 
That, subject to the addition and approval by the Chair of a synopsis relating to 
today’s presentation by Mr Mackney, the annual report be published. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

CLLR COTTLE-HUNKIN C    

CLLR FORD, L    

CLLR HARDING, S X   

CLLR HAWKINS, C X   

CLLR LANGFORD, S X   

CLLR LEATHER, C X   

CLLR McKENZIE, J X   

CLLR NEWTON, S X   

CLLR PENNINGTON, P W X   

Mr P TOPHAM X   

 
(Vote: for – unanimous) 
 

70.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN 2021 - 2022  
 
There were no amendments to the forward plan.  It was noted that the Chair felt 
the forward plan for the next year should be set by the incoming, new committee. 
 
Councillor Newton left the meeting. 
 
In response to a request to invite the grounds maintenance contractor to a future 
meeting, the Head of Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer gave the 
following update: Plans were progressing to bring the grounds maintenance 
service in house by 1 April 2022.  Any complaints about the current service should 
be passed to the Head of Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer.  
 

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and closed at 7.30 pm 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 9



 EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/2022 
 

Cycle 1 
9 June 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 2 
21 July 2021 

6.00pm 

Cycle 3 
1 Sept. 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 4 
13 Oct. 2021 

6pm 
 

Cycle 5 
24 Nov 2021 

2pm 

Cycle 6 
19 Jan 2022 

6pm 

Cycle 7 
9 March 2022 

2pm 

Cycle 8 
27 April 2022 

6pm 

 
 

 
- Mental health post 
Covid.  –Together 

(Drug/alcohol service) 
 
 

 
Mental Health post 

Covid.  Leesar project 
– NDADA and SPLITZ, 
domestic and sexual 

violence services. 

 
Environment / 

Biosphere / Drainage 
and Sewage- joint 
meeting with North 

Devon Council 

    

 
  

Community Safety 
Partnership 

   
 

 

UPCOMING ITEMS FOR FORWARD PLAN  

Prosperous and Sustainable Economy 
 

Sectors 
Agriculture & Fisheries – NFU / support organisations  
Agriculture Bill – invite MP 
The economy (national / local) 
Education – to be broken down into smaller segments 
Employment (NEETS, Petroc) / Working with young people / apprenticeships 
Housing (first time home buyers, planning policy, social housing, homelessness) 
Organisations 
Bideford Chamber of Commerce 
North Devon+/Leader5 
Infrastructure 
Empty buildings 
Industrial Units and local economy 
Transport (buses, Link Road) 

Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities  
 

Concerns 
Ambulance cover, hospital beds, healthcare providers 
Ambulance response times in relation to downgrading to Category 2 of serious conditions such as 
stroke and chest pain (from Bideford / Northam AAG) 
Fuel poverty 
Pharmacies 
Resourcing of community policing including PCSOs 
Staffing at North Devon Hospital 
Social housing landlords 
Leisure Services 
Organisations 
Burton Art Gallery 
CAB 
Healthwatch 
Leisure Services (1610):  Joint T&F update and separate scrutiny by External  
Suzanne Tracey – North Devon Healthcare Trust 

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 10



TTVS 

Quality Environment 
 

Concerns 
Housing developments and water run off 
Overflow issues at Appledore / Westward Ho 
Surface water draining / Flooding 
Water Quality – Sewerage 
Organisations 
AONB / Biosphere 
Environment Agency and Devon County Council (surface water draining / flooding) 
Southwest Water (overflow issues and Appledore / Westward Ho)  

Effective and Customer Focused Council  
 
Mr Topham:  Liaison with external bodies / Partner Evaluation Form for 12 month review. 
 

  

 

Health, well-being and community safety organisations 

Together (drug and alcohol commissioned service) 
Leesar (domestic violence commissioned support services) 
Office of the Police and Crime Commisioner 
Devon safeguarding adults board 
Devon children’s and family board 
North Devon Biosphere 
Active Devon 
South West Water 
Western Power Distribution 
Surestart 
BBfA (better business for all) 
South West Growth Hub 
South West Armed Forces Covenant Partnership Board 
TTVS 
RSPCA 
 

Trading standards 
Environment Agency 
Devon Anti Slavery Partnership/ Unseen 
One Northern Devon 
Devon Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Local resilience forum 
Lendology (formally Wessex Loans) 
361 Energy 
Integr8 
Recovery Devon 
Space 
Encompass South West 
Westward Housing 
Livewest Housing 
Bideford Street Pastors 
Devon Libraries unlimited 
 

 

P
age 11


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	10 Consideration Of The Forward Plan

